Section-II

Framework for Social Impact Assessment Standards

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION	3
APPLICABILITY OF THE FRAMEWORK	3
OBJECTIVE OF THE FRAMEWORK	3
SCOPE OF THE FRAMEWORK	44
ELEMENTS OF A SOCIAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT ENGAGEMENT	4
(A) Three Party Relationship (B) Social project/program/intervention (C) Project Monitoring Framework (D) Evidence (E) Social Impact Assessment Report	5 5 6
SCOPE OF SOCIAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT	6
STAKEHOLDERS AND USERS	7
CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SOCIAL IMPACT ASSESSORS	
ENGAGEMENT ACCEPTANCE	7
QUALITY CONTROL FOR SOCIAL IMPACT ASSESSOR/ASSESSOR FIRM	8
AGREEING THE TERMS OF THE ENGAGEMENT	8
COMMUNICATION WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE	9
COMMUNICATING GAPS IN INTERNAL MONITORING AND CONTROL TO THOSE CHARGED GOVERNANCE	
PLANNING	9
UNDERSTANDING THE ENTITY AND ITS ENVIRONMENT	10
A. ENTITY OVERVIEW	
B. SOCIAL OBJECTIVE & IMPACT OVERVIEW	
SOCIAL IMPACT ASSESSOR'S RESPONSES TO ASSESSED RISK	
USING FIELD LEVEL RESEARCH AGENCY AND/OR SUBJECT MATTER EXPERTS	
DOCUMENTATION	
MATERIALITY	
INTERNAL MONITORING AND CONTROLS	
WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS	
WRITTEN CONFIRMATION FROM SOCIAL ENTERPRISE	
FIELDWORK PROCESS - SAMPLING AND DATA COLLECTION	
(A) OBTAINING PROGRAM/ PROJECT UNDERSTANDING	14 15
(E) METHODS OF DATA COLLECTION	15 16
USE OF TECHNOLOGY IN SOCIAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT	
SOCIAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT REPORT	

Introduction

- This Framework defines and describes the elements and objectives of a social impact assessment performed by the Social Impact Assessor ("the Assessor"). It provides a frame of reference for:
 - (a) The Assessor when performing social impact assessment of project/ program executed by social enterprises.
 - (b) The responsible party, the engaging party, if any, and other stakeholders who are the intended users of social impact assessment report.

This Framework does not itself establish standards or provide specific requirements for the performance of area specific social impact assessment engagements relating to specific thematic areas within social objectives such as Poverty, Climate Change, Health etc.

Social Impact Assessment Standards (SIASs)¹ contain essential procedures and related guidance/ criteria, consistent with the concepts in this Framework, for the performance of such thematic area-specific social impact assessment engagements. The respective SIASs may be referred for the area specific social indicators. Care should be taken to contextually use the thematic area wise illustrative criteria/sub-criteria provided in SIASs. This needs to be based on project specific monitoring and evaluation (M&E) framework prepared and adopted for social/ environmental/ cultural projects according to Theory of Change/Logic Model. The Guiding Framework on how to use Theory of Change/Logic Model for preparing the projects and setting the M&E framework is given in **Section-III(I)**.

Applicability of the Framework

2. This Framework will be mandatorily applicable for social impact assessment assignments undertaken by the Assessor on or after .

Objective of the Framework

- 3. The objective of this Framework is -
- (a) To provide basic principles and elements in relation to (i) social impact assessment of projects/ programs/ project-based activities of a social enterprise registered/ listed on the Social Stock Exchange (ii) social impact assessment of projects/ programs/ project-based activities of any other organisations.
- (b) To provide related guidance on matters relating to preparation of social impact assessment report,in accordance with the Assessor's findings based on the procedures performed and evidence obtained.

¹ Unified SIASs to be developed jointly by the SROs. Till such time, existing SIASs may be used by the Assessors in alignment with the logic model of project framework.

Scope of the Framework

- 4. This Framework applies to social impact assessment of project/ program of social enterprises to be conducted by the Assessor using this framework principles. This Framework may also be applied to any other engagement(s) conducted by a social impact assessor e.g. impact assessment under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, as amended from time to time or any other similar assignment. Any other engagement(s) conducted by other auditor of an organization e.g. statutory audit, internal audit, tax audit will not be under the scope of this Framework.
- 5. The Assessor and the responsible party may agree to apply the principles of this Framework to an engagement when there are no intended users other than the responsible party. In such situations, the social impact assessor's report includes a statement restricting the use of the report to the responsible party.
- 6. This Framework is focused on providing guidance to the Assessor for conducting an assessment of the social impact that the project/program has created in the field in the format as may be prescribed from time to time.

Elements of a Social Impact Assessment Engagement

- 7. There are five elements of a social impact assessment engagement which are:
- (a) A three-party relationship involving a social impact assessor, a responsible party, and intended users;
- (b) Project/ Program/ Intervention to be covered;
- (c) Project Monitoring Framework;
- (d) Evidence; and
- (e) A written impact assessment report.

These elements are discussed below:

(a) Three Party Relationship

 Social impact assessment engagements involve three separate parties: a social impact assessor, a responsible party and intended users. The responsible party and the intended users may be from different entities or the same entity.

Social Impact Assessor

"Social Impact Assessor" or "the Assessor" means an individual registered with Self-Regulatory Organisation (SRO) under the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), the Institute of Cost Accountants of India (ICMAI) or such other agency, as may be specified by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), who has qualified a certification program conducted by National Institution of Securities Market (NISM) and hold a valid certificate.

Responsible Party

The responsible party is the person (or persons) who is responsible for the subject matter. **Generally, social enterprise is the responsible party.** The responsible party may or may not be the party who engages the Assessor (the engaging party).

Intended Users

The intended users are the person(s) or class of persons for whom the social impact assessor prepares the social impact assessment report. The responsible party can be one of the intended users, but not the only one.

(b) Social project/ program/ intervention

9. Social impact assessment engagement is to conduct assessment of the project / program / intervention or part thereof relating to a thematic area (s) implemented by a social enterprise.

(c) Project Monitoring Framework

10. Social projects follow the approach of theory of change. The theory of change describes why change is needed and how it will happen. The project monitoring framework based on theory of change model will detail out the overall outcome aiming at impact and the inputs, activities, outputs and the intermediate outcomes that goes to fulfil the overall outcome for creating impact. Project monitoring framework would aid the Assessor's understanding of the projects and its nuances, identify key evaluation parameters, thematic areas of intervention and benefits rendered to the community, environmental ecosystem and cultural heritage. In addition, the Assessor should consider the following parameters against which the impact of the project may be assessed:

Inclusiveness	Ability of different stakeholders, particularly poorest and most marginalised - to access the benefits of activities, be part of institutions (healthcare / education committees/farmer groups/ cultural groups / environmental groups) and have access to shared benefits through the intervention
Relevance	Are the services /inputs /institutions facilitated in the project able to meet target segment's priorities? How was the planning done?Was it participatory? How were the success indicators developed? Was the community involved in development of project indicators?
Efficiency & effectivenes s	How efficiently have the resources been deployed, monitored and utilised? If the project is completed within the time duration? Have the activities been able to effectively address target segment's expectations?

Convergence	Degree of convergence with government/CSR/Financial Institutions/ other partnerships; relationship between individuals, community, institutions and other stakeholders.
Sustainability & Replicability	Do communities feel ownership over the assets created by the activities and/or will the project-initiated community interventions sustain even after the exit of the funding agency. Are the institutions strengthened adequately to effectively manage and sustain the activities after the completion of project? Has an exit strategy been proposed/drafted? Is there a potential to sustain/replicate the solution in other geographies?

(d) Evidence

11. The Assessor plans and performs a social impact assessment with an attitude of professional skepticism to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence of the implementation of the social program in the field.

Professional Skepticism

An attitude of professional skepticism means the Assessor makes a critical assessment, with a questioning mind, of the validity of evidence obtained and is alert to evidence that contradicts or brings into question the reliability of documents or representations by the responsible party.

(e) Social Impact Assessment Report

12. The Assessor provides a written social impact assessment report containing the findings from the assessment in terms of impact created and gaps, if any.

Scope of Social Impact Assessment

- 13. Social impact assessment is an independent, objective and reliable examination of impact of a project / program / project-based activity of a social enterprise.
- 14. A social impact assessment
 - Assesses whether the project/program/project-based activity is operating in accordance with the stated strategic intent and planning.
 - Assesses the stated performance in terms of outcomes/ impacts.
 - Suggests ways to improve or achieve the outcome/impact measurement and/ or performance by way of a management letter.

15. Scope of social impact assessment should include the physical and virtual-locations, functions, organizational units, activities and processes, as well as the time period covered under the impact assessment.

Stakeholders and Users

- 16. Stakeholders are those people or organizations that affect or are affected by the activities of the social enterprise or possess information, resources and expertise needed for the social impact assessment. The stakeholders / users may include the following:
 - Social enterprise (FPE / NPO)
 - Beneficiaries
 - Risk Investors
 - Impact Investors
 - Outcome Funder
 - Third Party Evaluator
 - Intermediaries
 - Governments/Regulators
 - Society at large
 - Vendors
 - Third party agencies
 - Funds providers
 - Trustees
 - Directors, etc.

Code of Conduct for Social Impact Assessors

17. Social impact assessors who perform social impact assessments are governed by the Code of Conduct placed at **Section-III(II)**. The Code of Conduct includes the fundamental ethical principles of Integrity, Objectivity, Confidentiality, Professional behavior, Professional competence, and due care.

Grievance Redressal Policy

- 18. In case of non-compliance with the code of conduct, guidelines or for nonethical practices the grievance may be raised by following member/entities to the SROs:
 - i. any member of the SROs against other member for violation of code of conduct or guidelines as may be applicable;
 - ii. any person or entity who has engaged a member of the SROs for conducting social impact assessment;
 - iii. any other person or class of persons as may be determined by the Governing Board of SROs under the ambit of Unified Impact Assessment Standard.

In such cases, grievance shall be dealt with in accordance with the 'Grievance Redressal Policy' given at **Section-III (III)**

Engagement Acceptance

- 19. A social impact assessor accepts a social impact assessment engagement only where the Assessor's preliminary knowledge of the engagement circumstances indicates that:
 - (a) Relevant ethical requirements, such as independence, domain knowledge and professional competence will be satisfied, and
 - (b) The engagement exhibits the elements described in paragraph 7 above.

Quality Control for Social Impact Assessor/Assessor Firm

- 20. The social impact assessor / Assessor firm should establish a system of quality control and quality management designed to ensure that the firm and its personnel (including engaged experts) comply with professional standards, ethics and regulatory and legal requirements, and that the reports issued by the Assessor or Assessor's firm, are appropriate in the given circumstances.
- 21. The social impact assessor firm's system of quality control should include policies and procedures addressing each of the following elements:
 - (a) Leadership responsibilities for quality within the firm.
 - (b) Ethical requirements.
 - (c) Acceptance and continuance of end user relationships and specific engagements including scope determination.
 - (d) Human resources including engagement of experts.
 - (e) Engagement performance including social audit trail.
 - (f) Monitoring.
 - (g) Documentation review procedures including methodology for materiality, risk assessment, sampling, stakeholder identification, priority mapping, and feedback(as applicable).
 - (h) Direction, review and supervision of the audit process.
 - (i) Data collection, quality checking and analyses.
 - (j) Risk mitigation strategy including liability on account of social impact assessment certifications.
 - (k) Grievance redressal mechanism
- 22. The firm should establish policies and procedures designed to promote an internal culture based on the recognition that quality is essential in performing engagements and to ensure that the firm and its personnel (and engaged experts) comply with relevant ethical and practical training requirements. The quality control policies and procedures should be documented and communicated to the firm's personnel.

Agreeing the terms of the engagement

- 23. The Assessor is to accept or continue a social impact assessment engagement only when the basis upon which it is to be performed has been agreed, through:
- (a) Establishing whether the elements described in paragraph 7 above are present; and
- (b) Confirming that there is a common understanding between the Assessor and management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance of the terms of the social impact assessment.

The Assessor and the Social Enterprise shall maintain confidentiality of the information and enter into a Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA) to protect the interest of both the parties and its stakeholders. A model format of 'Confidential Information and Non-disclosure Agreement' is given at **Section III (IV).**

Communication with those charged with governance

- 24. The objectives of the Assessor's communication with those charged with governance (TCWG) are:
 - (a) To communicate clearly with those charged with governance the responsibilities of the Assessor in relation to the social impact assessment, and an overview of the planned scope and timing of the social impact assessment;
 - (b) To obtain from those charged with governance information relevant to the social impact assessment;
 - (c) To provide those charged with governance with timely observations arising from the social impact assessment that are significant and relevant to project/program; and
 - (d) To promote effective two-way communication between the Assessor and those charged with governance.

Communicating gaps in internal monitoring and control to those charged with Governance

25. The Assessor should communicate appropriately to those charged with governance and management, gaps in internal monitoring and control for program implementation/ management, that the Assessor has identified during the social impact assessment and that, in the Assessor's professional judgment, are of sufficient importance to merit their respective attentions.

Planning

- 26. The overall aim at the planning stage is to decide, by building up knowledge on impact assessment framework, the internal monitoring and control system set for this and, considering a variety of strategies, how best to conduct the social impact assessment.
- 27. The social impact assessment should establish an overall engagement strategy

that sets the scope, timing and direction of the engagement, and that guides the development of the work plan.

- 28. In establishing the overall engagement strategy, the Assessor should:
 - (a) Identify the characteristics of the engagement that define its scope;
 - (b) Ascertain the reporting objectives of the engagement to plan the timing of the assessment, and nature of the communications required;
 - (c) Consider the factors that, in the Assessor's professional judgment, are significant in directing the engagement team's efforts;
 - (d) Consider the results of preliminary engagement activities and, where applicable, whether knowledge gained on other engagements performed by the Assessor for the entity is relevant; and
 - (e) Ascertain the nature, timing and extent of resources necessary to perform the engagement.
- 29. The Assessor should develop a work plan that should include a description of procedures that are required to be carried out so that the engagement complies with this Framework using SIASs.
- 30. The Assessor should update and change the overall engagement strategy and the work plan as necessary during the course of the engagement.

Understanding the Entity and Its environment

31. The Assessor should conduct a preliminary review through understanding the entity and its environment to establish the primacy of its social intent for the purpose of identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement.

A. Entity Overview

The Assessor should conduct a preliminary review of the background information in relation to the Entity. Such review may include the following points:

- Legal form of the entity and its intent/ objectives.
- Period and projects for which audit is to be carried out.
- Key managerial personnel of the entity.
- Geographical regions in which the entity operates.
- Policies and procedures.
- Governing board/ promoters.
- Whistle blower policy of the entity.

B. Social Objective & Impact Overview

The Assessor should conduct a preliminary review in relation to the social objective and impact overview that has been outlined based on Guiding Framework on Logic Model. Such review may include the following points:

• Stated objectives of the projects/ program.

- Project Monitoring Framework.
- Program specific baseline, midline and end line assessment reports (if any).
- Project progress, project exit/takeover plan and closure report (if applicable).
- Program specific fund utilization certificate.
- Details of vendors and other third parties.
- Outlay on social activities for beneficiaries, for example, in relation to promoting education, employability and livelihoods.

Social Impact Assessor's responses to assessed risk

32. While planning the assessment, the Assessor should consider the risks/challenges in implementing the project/program, which may be different for different thematic areas.

Using field level research agency and/or subject matter experts

- 33. When the Assessor delegates work to assistants/ field level research agency or uses work performed by other assessors and subject matter experts, he will continue to be responsible for quality control of the social impact assessment report of the social enterprise. For this purpose, he may need to plan necessary procedures to monitor, track and review the work of the field level research agency and/or other assessors or subject matter experts.
- 34. The Assessor should perform procedures to obtain sufficient comfort that the work of the assistants/ field level research agency or other assessors or subject matter experts is adequate for the Assessor's purposes, in the context of the specific social impact assessment.
- 35. The Assessor should consider the significant findings/assessments of the assistants/ field level research agency or other assessors or subject matter experts.
- 36. The Assessor should evaluate whether the subject matter expert has the necessary competence, capabilities and objectivity for the social impact assessment purposes.
- 37. The Assessor should obtain a sufficient understanding of the field of expertise of the subject matter expert to enable the Assessor to:
 - (a) Determine the nature, scope and objectives of that expert's work for the social impact assessment purposes; and
- (b) Evaluate the adequacy of that work for the social impact assessment purposes.
- 38. The Assessor should agree, in writing when appropriate, on the following matters with the subject matter expert:
- (a) The nature, scope and objectives of that expert's work;
- (b) The respective roles and responsibilities of the Assessor and that expert;

- (c) The nature, timing and extent of communication between the Assessor and that expert, including the form of any report to be provided by that expert; and
- (d) The need for the subject matter expert to observe confidentiality requirements.
- 39. The Assessor should evaluate the adequacy of the subject matter expert's work for the social impact assessment purposes, including:
 - (a) The relevance and reasonableness of that expert's findings or conclusions, and their consistency with other impact evidence;
 - (b) If that expert's work involves use of significant assumptions and methods, the relevance and reasonableness of those assumptions and methods in the circumstances; and
 - (c) If that expert's work involves the use of source data that is significant to that expert's work, the relevance, completeness, and accuracy of that source data.
 - 40. If the Assessor determines that the work of the subject matter expert is not adequate for the social impact assessment purposes, the Assessor should:
 - (a) Agree with that expert on the nature and extent of further work to be performed by that expert; or
 - (b) Perform further procedures appropriate to the circumstances.
 - 41. The Assessor should not refer to the work of a subject matter expert in social impact assessment report unless required by law or regulation to do so. If such reference is required by law or regulation, the Assessor should indicate in the social impact assessment report that the reference does not reduce the Assessor's responsibility for the social impact assessment. If the Assessor makes reference to the work of a subject matter expert in the social impact assessment report because such reference is relevant to an understanding of the social impact assessment findings, the Assessor should indicate in the social impact assessment report that such reference does not reduce the Assessor's responsibility.

Documentation

- 42. The Assessor should prepare on a timely basis engagement documentation that provides a record of the basis for the social impact assessment report that is sufficient and appropriate, to understand:
 - The nature, timing and extent of the procedures performed to comply with this Framework;
 - The results of the procedures performed, and the evidence obtained; and
 - Significant issues observed during the engagement and the recommendations for improvements in the future.
- 43. The Assessor should assemble the engagement documentation in an

- engagement file (whether maintained in hard copy or soft copy) and complete the administrative process of assembling the final engagement file on a timely basis, usually not more than 60 days after the date of the social impact assessment report.
- 44. After the assembly of the final engagement file has been completed, the Assessor should not delete or discard engagement documentation of any nature before the end of its retention period. The retention period for such engagements ordinarily is seven years from the date of the social impact assessment report.

Materiality

45. The Assessor should consider materiality when assessing outcome/impact of the project. Materiality should be considered in the context of quantitative and qualitative factors, such as relative magnitude, the nature and extent of the effect of these factors on the evaluation or measurement of the subject matter, and the interests of the multiple stakeholders.

Internal Monitoring and Controls

46. The Assessor should understand internal monitoring and control system for project management, progress tracking and quality assurance and procedures to verify that they exist and are followed. This would help track and assess impact measurements and performance.

Written Representations

47. The Assessor should request written representations from management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance on the matters in respect of which the Assessor considers it necessary to obtain written representations. Although written representations provide necessary audit evidence, they do not provide sufficient appropriate audit evidence on their own about any of the matters with which they deal. Furthermore, the fact that management has provided reliable written representations does not affect the nature or extent of other audit evidence that the social impact assessor obtains about the fulfillment of management's responsibilities, or about specific assertions.

Written Confirmation from Social Enterprise

48. The Assessor should request written confirmation from the social enterprise that the social impact assessment process was carried out and the draft impact assessment report was shared with social enterprise and the responses were heard and noted. The minutes of the social impact assessment meetings captured the said responses and the points for action on issues revealed in Social Impact Assessment Report. The feedback mentioned in the minutes will be reviewed and will be appropriately incorporated in the next social impact assessment cycle.

Fieldwork Process - Sampling and Data Collection

49. A fieldwork process can be followed for any social impact assessment engagement which would include the following steps:

(a) Obtaining Program/ Project Understanding

50. First of all, the Assessor need to understand the project implementation strategy set according to the Guiding Framework on Logic Model. The Assessor then-after should consider the baseline, mid-line and end-line assessment report (if available) of overall outcome/impact during the beginning, middle and end of the reporting period/project/program and the internal monitoring and control mechanisms of the yearly targets set for the achievements. The baseline measurement/ status/ situation analysis / context description is required to establish the starting point in any project/ program/ project- based activity. A mid-line and end-line measurement is the overall outcome/impact assessment conducted respectively during the intervention phase and after the end of that intervention. The measurements give the depth of the challenge and/or the spread of the challenge and challenges involved to attend inclusion of deserving beneficiaries in the project process.

For this purpose, the Assessor should take specific note of the following:

- i. Assumptions made with respect to the data collection methodology and assumptions & limitations carried for data collection etc.
- ii. Listing of data requirements and documents required for the social impact assessment.
- iii. In case of the on-going project/ program/ project-based activity, explanation of the key past performance trends.
- iv. Detailed work/implementation plan with timeline mentioning and capturing all the essential interventions relating to the project/ program/ project-based activity.
- v. Deviations, if any, found in the reporting period vis a vis the baseline status with the reason for deviation.
- vi. Detailed description of the alignment of outcomes of the project/ program/ project- based activity to the national priorities/ state priorities and mapping with the NITI Aayog's SDG India Index Indicators (as relevant).
- vii. List of stakeholders identified, mapped and prioritized, and engaged with respect to the project/ program/ project-based activity and the feedback received from the stakeholders and actions taken.
- viii. Risk identification and mitigation measures adopted by the social enterprise.

(b) Defining Sample Size

51. Sampling is a process of selection of a part of the population or universe to interact, assess and evaluate the impact that the project has created. The sample size will be determined by the data availability and accessibility of beneficiaries.

Key steps to follow for determining Sample:

- i. Type of Universe: The first step in a sample design is defining the set of objects, aggregate of elements technically defined as population or universe. Universe can be finite or infinite i.e., where the number of items or elements is certain, the universe is finite whereas, if the number of items or elements is not certain, the universe is not finite.
- ii. Sampling Unit: Sampling unit can be defined as the minimum unit for observation, that acts as a building block of the data, for instance social unit i.e., family, school, religious place, or geographical unit i.e., state, district, block, village etc.
- iii. Sample Size: This can be defined as number of items, objects or elements selected from universe or population to constitute a sample for conducting impact study. Sample size determination depends on many factors such as time, cost, facility. In general, larger samples are better, but they also require more resources.
- iv. Sampling Methodology: The choice of the sampling method is influenced by the objectives of the evaluation/ research, availability of financial resources, time constraints, and the nature of the problem to be investigated. For calculating statistically significant sample sizes, one must define confidence interval and margin of error.

(c) Define Data Requirement

52. Besides the information provided by the social enterprise, the Assessor may have to collect more data for engagement purposes. Data required for measuring indicators may often be available in qualitative form.

(d) Collection of Data

53. To collect data other than that provided by the social enterprise, the Assessor should use either or both data collection sources namely - primary source(s) and secondary source(s). The primary sources of data collection may include any one or more of individual interviews, questionnaires, focus group interviews, observation sometimes as per the indicators that have been identified by the Assessor at the planning stage. The respondents or information providers would be the stakeholders of the social enterprise which affect or are affected by the project/ program/ project-based activity. The secondary sources of data collection may include any one or more of journal articles, research papers / dissertations, social/print media and literature that disseminate, interpret, analyse relevant information and issues on the subject matter.

(e) Methods of Data Collection

- 54. The Assessor should consider but not limit themselves in suitably using one or more of the following methods of data collection used for assessing impact. They are also encouraged to explore and use other new and emerging methods of quantitative and qualitative data collection methods including participatory appraisal methods, if considered appropriate:
- (i) Observation: In this method, the information is collected with direct observation using the observation checklist without interacting with the respondents.

The advantage of this method is that subjective bias is eliminated if observation is done accurately.

Secondly, the information captured under this method is focused on what is currently happening; it is not impacted by either the past or future instances.

Thirdly, this method is independent of respondent's willingness to respond.

- (ii) Interview Method: Interview requires the interviewer asking questions from respondents either in a face-to-face contact or via telephonic discussion using structured/unstructured interviews.
 - a. Structured interviews: This Interview method involves collecting information through personal interviews and is carried out in a structured way. This method involves series of pre-determined set of questions that interviewee responds in the defined order.
 - b. Unstructured interviews: In unstructured interviews there is flexibility in approach to questioning. This method does not follow a system of predetermined set of questions and standardized techniques of recording data. The interviewer in unstructured interview has the freedom to ask, and if required, supplementary questions can be added or certain questions can be omitted depending on the situation.
- (iii) Focused Group Discussion (FGD): In FGD, a selected group of people discuss or share their opinions, experiences about given topic or issue, and the discussion is facilitated by a trained external moderator. This method captures the attitudes, knowledge, perception, and experiences of the participants. FGD is a very important tool to gather information in a converged manner from a group of people who are the project stakeholders and also helps to validate the quantitative data collected from the beneficiaries related to the interventions.

For the purpose of this Framework, the FGD constitutes subject matter experts including NGOs, NPOs, working on the respective thematic areas and actively engaged in social activities; and beneficiaries.

(f) Data Quality Check:

55. While conducting review of documents/data, the Assessor should check data quality based on the following indicators:

Validity: Whether data collected measures what it is intended to measure.

Reliability: Whether data measurements are based on standard methodologies.

Completeness: All data aspects are captured as per methodology.

Integrity: Data is protected from bias or manipulation.

Timelines: Data is up to date and timely.

(g) Clean Data, Analyze Data and Interpret Results

- 56. Data cleaning is to be done to check if the data is duplicate, erroneous or incomplete and identify any outliers within the data sets. If data is incorrect, outcomes and results may not be reliable, even though they may look correct. Data cleaning process may vary from dataset to dataset.
- 57. Data analysis is the process of collecting, modelling, and analysing data to extract insights that support decision-making. Data analysis is important as it helps in making informed decisions, reduces cost and helps to target the stakeholders better.

Data analysis can be both qualitative and quantitative.

Data analysis for qualitative assessment involves interviews, focus groups, experiments etc. for identifying common patterns within the responses and critically analyzing them.

Data analysis for quantitative assessment involves critical analysis and interpretation of figures and numbers, and attempts to find rationale behind the emergence of main findings.

Data gathered by the Assessor needs to be analyzed to reach impact assessment conclusions. Data analysis is a process of understanding, measuring and reporting on the social, environmental and economic value that is being created by the project/ program/ project-based activity. Data may be analyzed using appropriate methods of analysis to interpret the data meaningfully such as trend analysis, regression analysis (as relevant). The Assessor should take care of multiple entries and should not report anything that cannot be verified. Duplicate entries should either be removed or multiple counts should be grouped as one. For example, two beneficiaries of one family may be grouped as one in count of families.

58. The results of data analysis need to be interpreted as per the Guiding Framework on Theory of Change/Logic Model explaining the process of intended social outcome/impact of the project/ program/ project-based activity. The model clearly outlines the linkage from inputs to activities, to outputs, to outcomes, and ultimately to impact. The Assessor needs to study the outcomes and the real social impact on the target segments to identify gaps, if any. The Assessor should also compare the actual results with the expected outcome(s)and/ or benchmark data, baseline data, if any.

In presenting the results of the analysis, the Assessor should tailor the qualitative

discussion to sample representatives of each stakeholder group, since stakeholders will have different objectives, and the relationship of each stakeholder to the social enterprise will vary.

The stakeholder voices capture information to help assess the impact, validate and establishes a check and avoids overclaiming. The review process should answer the following questions:

- What was the situation before and what would have happened in the absence of this project/ program/ project-based activity?
- How much the project/ program/ project-based activity contributed to the changes that are evidenced as compared to pre project interventions?
- How much unintended impacts (positive and negative) happened due to the project/program/ project-based activity?

Further, a personalized approach can provide a momentum for new dialogue with the stakeholders. For example, investors are interested to find out the extent to which their actions are helping or hindering social goals. The social enterprise is interested in learning about how impact investors think of their activities and impact measurements adopted.

The analysis of data and its interpretation needs to be discussed with the stakeholders so that the same may be validated. At this stage, the Assessor should be able to compare the actual social impact to that which was desired from the project/ program/ project-based activity.

Use of Technology in Social Impact Assessment

- 59. The Assessor should determine the usage and acceptability of technology for meeting the objectives, collecting and verifying evidence as well as validating impact measurements and assessments in case of social impact assessment engagements. The Assessor should consider the extent of usage of IT tools to be deployed for
 - Information database information of all stakeholders beneficiaries, volunteers, staff at one place.
 - Data collection through online surveys, virtual interviews, satellite imagery formonitoring forestry coverage etc.
 - Data sorting and visualisation.
 - Data analysis.
 - Reporting.

Social Impact Assessment Report

60. The social impact assessment report should be in the format as may be prescribed from time to time and should contain a clear expression of the Assessor's findings based on his/her independent assessment of the project under review.

- 61. The social impact assessment report should address the social impact aspect covered by the project/ program/ project-based activity that the intended users will be interested in. The Assessor should strive to provide social impact assessment reports which are not only stakeholder-friendly and timely but also comprehensive, convincing and balanced.
- 62. To be comprehensive, the report should put forward the perspective of social impact vis a vis meeting the intended social/environmental/cultural objective(s). To be convincing, the report should be logically structured and present a clear relationship between the objective/scope, key performance indicators and findings based on program designed according to the Guiding Framework on Logic Model.
- **63**. Being balanced means that the report should present findings objectively and fairlyin an impartial manner considering different perspectives and viewpoints of stakeholders. The report should incorporate positive impacts and aspects related to gaps/ challenges and avoid any kind of biased language or information.

Glossary of Technical Terms

- (i) Activity/ Program/ Intervention/ Project: "Activity/ Program/ Intervention/ Project" means any of the activities enumerated under Regulation 292E(2)(a) of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2018, in which a Social Enterprise is engaged, making it eligible under Chapter X-A of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2018.
- (ii) **Code of Conduct:** The ethical framework provided, outlining principles for responsible and ethical social impact assessment practices.
- (iii) For Profit Social Enterprise: means a company or a body corporate operating for profit, which is a Social Enterprise for the purposes of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and does not include a company incorporated under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. [292A (c)]
- (iv) **Financial Year:** The period for which the annual Social Impact Report is prepared. This is from this year April to next year March cycle.
- (v) **Inputs:** The resources used to run the project/program/project-based activity such as money, people, facilities and equipment. This is the investment against which the value of the impact created will be compared.
- (vi) **Impact Score card/Study:** A tool that helps enterprises communicate the social impact outputs, outcome and risks.

- (vii) **Key Performance Indicator (KPI):** Information that allow key performances to be measured. This usually takes the form of a value which links an enterprise's activities to its output and outcomes. External KPIs are meant for third party evaluation. Internal KPIs are for internal monitoring and control of project/program management.
- (viii) Materiality: it refers to the importance and significance of information in respect of the reporting entity's impact on the multiple stakeholders. Information is considered material if it could influence the decisions of the stakeholders.
- (ix) **Not for Profit Organization:** means a Social Enterprise which is any of the following entities:
 - (i) a charitable trust registered under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882;
 - (ii) a charitable trust registered under the public trust statute of the relevant state;
 - (iii) a charitable society registered under the Societies Registration Act, 1860;
 - (iv) a company incorporated under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013:
 - (v) any other entity as may be specified by the SEBI
- (x) **Outcomes:** Changes resulting from the activity for project beneficiary entity, or other stakeholders.
- (xi) **Outputs:** The direct and tangible products from the project/program/project-based activity for example, the number of people trained / employed.
- (xii) **Professional Judgment:** The application of relevant training, knowledge and experience, within the social/ cultural/ environmental development context provided by social impact assessment, financial auditing, accounting and ethical standards, in making informed decisions about the courses of action that are appropriate in the circumstances of the social impact assessment engagement.
- (xiii) **Project Mode:** Indicates whether the project is one-time or ongoing.
- (xiv) **Programme Area:** Geographical location of the project, specifying states and districts.
- (xv) **Qualitative Data:** Non-numeric information, often gathered through interviews, focus groups, or observations, providing insights into the qualitative aspects of impact.

- (xvi) **Quantitative Data:** Numeric information gathered through surveys, measurements, and statistical analysis, offering measurable metrics for impact assessment.
- (xvii) Social Impact Assessor or the Assessor: means an individual registered with Self-Regulatory Organisation (SRO) under the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), the Institute of Cost Accountants of India (ICMAI) or such other agency, as may be specified by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), who has qualified a certification program conducted by National Institute of Securities Markets (NISM) and hold a valid certificate in terms of 292 A (f) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure requirements)(Third Amendment) Regulations, dated 25th July, 2022
- (xviii) **Social Assessor's Firm:** means any entity which has engaged social impact assessors and has a track record of minimum three years for conducting social impact assessment in terms of 292 A (g) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure requirements)(Third Amendment) Regulations, dated 25th July, 2022.
- (xix) **Social Enterprise:** means either a not-for-profit organisation or a for profit social enterprise that meets the eligibility criteria specified under Chapter X-A of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018. [Regulation 292A(h)]
- (xx) **Social Impact:** A term used extensively for the net effect of a project/program/project-based activity for the beneficiary entities undertaken with the intent to deliver social, environmental and cultural benefits.
- (xxi) **Social Impact Assessment:** An independent, qualitative and quantitative assessment regarding a Social Enterprise engaged in any of the activity enumerated under Regulation 292E(2)(a) of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2018. It reaffirms the primacy of the social/environmental/cultural intent of a Social Enterprise and brings a systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of impact of the social activity.
- (xxii) **Social Stock Exchange (SSE):** means a separate segment of a recognized stock exchange having nationwide trading terminals permitted to register Not for Profit Organizations and / or list the securities issued by Not-for-Profit Organizations in accordance with the provisions of Chapter X-A of

- SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018. [Regulation 292A (i)]
- (xxiii) **Stakeholder:** Individuals or groups who are affected by or can affect the outcome of an organization's actions, including employees, investors, and community members.
- (xxiv) **SRO (Self-Regulatory Organization):** An organization approved by SEBI to regulate and oversee Social Impact Assessors in terms of 292 A (f) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, dated 25th July, 2022.
- (xxv) **Target Entities:** Units, things, articles, beings, individuals, bodies, persons, people, creatures targeted by the Social Enterprise in their social/cultural/environmental projects/programs.
- (xxvi) **Those charged with Governance-** The person(s) or organisation(s) (e.g. a corporate trustee) with responsibility for overseeing the strategic direction of the entity and obligations related to the accountability of the entity. This includes overseeing the financial reporting process. For some entities, those charged with governance may include management personnel, for example, executive members of a governance board of a private or public sector entity, or an owner-manager.
